
THE HAMPSHIRE PARTNERSHIP

Wednesday, 4th March, 2015
10.30 am

Ashburton Hall, Elizabeth II Court (Podium)
Hampshire County Council

Contact: members.services@hants.gov.uk

A G E N D A

1 Welcome and Announcements - Councillor Roy Perry, Leader of 
Hampshire County Council

2 Hampshire Cultural Trust

Janet Owen, Executive Officer for the Hampshire Cultural Trust will 
present on the formation and work of the Hampshire Cultural Trust, its 
success to date and to outline future plans and transformation.

3 Skills and Employment in Hampshire (Pages 3 - 4)

Further to the Workshop on Skills and Employment held on 9 December 
2015, the attached report revisits the key themes emerging from that  
Workshop, provides an update on discussions that have taken place 
since then and proposes some initial areas of work for the Partnership to 
take forward.

4 Implications of the Community Infrastructure Levy and Changes to 
Section 106 for Hampshire Authorities (Pages 5 - 10)

In recent years Hampshire’s local planning authorities and the County 
Council have worked closely together to address the challenges of 
infrastructure planning and delivery.  However, this year will witness 
further changes to the national planning system which will have serious 
implications for the ability of Hampshire’s local authorities to secure 
funding for critical infrastructure.  The attached report outlines those 
changes and the likely implications.

5 Any other business

6 Closing remarks - Councillor Roy Perry

7 Future meetings of The Hampshire Partnership

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Item 3

1

Report to the Hampshire Partnership 

Date: 4 March 2015

Title: Skills and employment Workshop – Follow up

Contact name: Andrew Lloyd, Chief Executive Rushmoor Borough Council

Tel:   01252 398397 Email: Andrew.lloyd@rushmoor.gov.uk

1. Purpose

1.1 The purpose of this paper is to remind the Partnership of the key themes 
emerging for their workshop on 9 December 2014, to update them on 
discussions since then and propose some initial areas of work for the 
Partnership to take forward.

2. Background

2.1 Key themes from the workshop were summarised as follows: 

 The importance of ensuring appropriate advice and guidance on skills and 
employment options was available.

 Apprenticeships were considered to be undervalued and it was felt many 
employers would benefit from a better understanding of how 
apprenticeships worked and could be an asset to business

 Skills and employment work could be better coordinated - a more joined up 
approach between the bodies involved could perhaps be facilitated and 
noting schemes existed across the public sector and private sector.

3. Next Steps

3.1 Since the workshop, discussions have taken place with the Head of Hampshire 
Learning and Enterprise M3 to consider what might be useful next steps to take 
forward the priority actions identified at the workshop. It is suggested that the 
most helpful action to take forward would be to bring skills and employment 
practitioners and strategic leads from across the county and LEP areas 
together. Aims of the event could be to share the work going on and also to 
consider collectively how work on skills and employment could be undertaken 
more effectively. This could include considering improvements to the broader 
‘skills and employment system’ across the area including identifying areas of 
duplication and gaps in provision, consideration of future opportunities and 
ways of working collaboratively which might meet the needs of residents and 
businesses better.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3

mailto:Andrew.lloyd@rushmoor.gov.uk


Item 3

2

3.2 The Hampshire Partnership could choose to sponsor such an event in the form 
of a conference and workshops and Hampshire County Council have agreed to 
fund the event if there is support from the Partnership.
 

3.3 To inform the shape of the event it may also be helpful to take forward the 
Partnership’s proposal to facilitate a strategic conversation between schools, 
colleges, employers and universities, to identify skills needs in Hampshire from 
their perspectives.

3.4 A second area identified for action that seemed to have good support related to 
apprenticeships. The partnership could facilitate a group to come together 
including those representing businesses, the apprenticeships service, the LEP’s 
and local authorities to see where opportunities to help employers understand 
the opportunities from apprenticeships might lie.  

3.5 If the Partnership agree to the above then it is suggested that a budget be 
identified and a small steering group of officers and if desired a 
representative(s) from the partnership be established to take this work forward.

4. Recommendations
4.1 It is recommended that the Partnership consider and agreed the proposed 

approach to follow up from the workshop held in November and identify any 
representatives who might wish to be part of the steering group.

Page 4



1

Item 4

Report to The Hampshire Partnership

Date: 4 March 2015

Title: Implications of the Community Infrastructure Levy and 
Changes to Section 106 for Hampshire Authorities

1. Background  
1.1 In recent years Hampshire’s local planning authorities and the County Council have 

worked closely together to address the challenges of infrastructure planning and 
delivery, as illustrated by their Memorandum of Understanding agreed in June 2013 
and the establishment of a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Officers Group.  
However, this year will witness further changes to the national planning system which 
will have serious implications for the ability of Hampshire’s local authorities to secure 
funding for critical infrastructure.  This report outlines those changes and the likely 
implications.

1.2   In January this year changes to the National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) came 
into  effect which prevent local planning authorities from seeking affordable housing 
contributions and tariff-style planning obligations from self-build and small scale 
developments (ie up to 10 houses).  

1.3   On 6 April 2015 the final part of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 
will come into force. This will change the way that local authorities use section 106 for 
infrastructure funding.  CIL Regulation 123 will prevent authorities from both using tariff 
policies (standard charges for infrastructure contributions) and from pooling 
contributions for infrastructure from more than 5 planning obligations.  

2.     Implications  
2.1 The changes to the NPPG effectively prevent local authorities from ensuring that the 

cumulative impact of small scale development is effectively mitigated.  It has 
particularly severe implications for those authorities with a Special Protection Area 
(SPA) for which European law requires appropriate mitigation to be secured before 
planning permission is granted.

2.2 Where a CIL charging schedule is in operation local authorities do have the opportunity 
of collecting funding for infrastructure from all types and scales of development, subject 
to the details of the charging schedule.  Whilst CIL is not expected to raise the same 
levels of funding that have historically been collected from section 106 in Hampshire, it 
does provide an alternative means of funding to address the cumulative impact of 
smaller developments in particular.  

2.3 With respect to Affordable Housing, the prohibition on taking contributions from 
developments of 10 houses or fewer is likely to lead to a reduction in housing stock, as 
on-site provision from sites of this scale is difficult to achieve due to viability.  This 
reduction in affordable housing stock is inevitably going to have implications for lower 
paid key workers in the public sector, such as domiciliary carers and heath workers, 
who would otherwise struggle to find affordable housing within Hampshire with higher 
than average house prices.  It may also have implications for the provision of affordable 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



2

extra care facilities which might otherwise have been provided using contributions from 
smaller developments.

2.4 A Partnership of authorities, including West Berkshire and Wokingham,  have 
subsequently issued a legal challenge to the Department of Communities and Local 
Government decision about implementing this change to the NPPG on four grounds, 
including breach of the principles of consultation and State Aid.

2.5 With regard to the restriction on section 106, many authorities in Hampshire do not yet 
have up to date adopted local plans in place and are not therefore in a position to adopt 
a CIL charging schedule before the restrictions come into force.  This means they will 
have to continue to rely on section 106 to secure infrastructure funding.  

2.6 The prohibition on local authorities on use of tariff policies to determine the level of 
contributions payable, together with the restriction on pooling more than 5 obligations 
for any one project or type of infrastructure, will severely restrict the ability of 
Hampshire authorities to secure essential infrastructure funding.

2.7 The CIL Regulations originally specified that the restriction on section 106 would come 
into force on 6 April 2014, however as a result of lobbying by the County Council and 
other authorities this date was extended by one year in order to give local authorities 
more time to introduce CIL.

2.8 The House of Commons Communities and Local Government Select Committee 
published a report, entitled ‘Operation of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF)’ on 16 December 2014 which stated that: 

‘So far, the number of councils choosing to use CIL has been limited. Research by 
Savills forecasted that 68% of councils would not have CIL in place by April 2015…We 
gathered that councils might be reluctant to adopt CIL because they do not consider it 
to be as effective a means of funding infrastructure as planning obligations…In our 
view, the slow adoption of CIL by local authorities speaks for itself: it is clear that some 
councils consider section 106 agreements a more effective means of securing 
infrastructure contributions from developers. 

We consider that, if councils wish to continue using section 106 they should be able to 
do so, without the Government placing unnecessary restrictions upon them. The 
Government has committed to conducting a review of CIL in 2015.  In our view, it would 
be preferable to maintain the status quo until this review has had a full opportunity to 
consider the operation of CIL and its interaction with section 106 agreements. 

We recommend that the Government revoke its decision to limit to five the number of 
planning obligations that can contribute to a single piece of infrastructure until the 
proposed 2015 review of the Community Infrastructure Levy has taken place. In the 
meantime, local authorities should have a free choice between the use of the 
Community Infrastructure Levy and section 106 agreements for the funding of 
infrastructure.’

2.9 Appendix 1, attached, outlines where each of the Hampshire district, borough and city 
council authorities are with the local plan process and CIL.  This shows that the 
majority of authorities in Hampshire will not be in a position to introduce CIL and 
therefore will be severely impacted by the Regulations.

Page 6

http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201415/cmselect/cmcomloc/190/19005.htm#a5
http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201415/cmselect/cmcomloc/190/19005.htm#a5


3

3. Conclusion / Recommendations     
3.4 The Hampshire Partnership is invited to consider endorsing the recommendations of 

the Parliamentary Select Committee and to consider writing to the Secretary of State 
for Communities and Local Government to ask him to review the enactment of 
Regulation 123 in order to permit local authorities to continue to use section 106 for a 
further two years, until 6 April 2017, or until such time as the local plan is in place if 
sooner.  

Page 7



4

Appendix 1:  Update on where Hampshire authorities are with the Local Plan and Community Infrastructure Levy process

Local Plan Process Community Infrastructure Levy ProcessAuthority

Consultation 
stages

Pre-
submission 
consultation

Submission Examination Adoption Preliminary 
Draft 
Charging 
Schedule

Draft 
Charging 
Schedule

Submission Examination Adoption

Basingstoke 
and Deane

March 2014 May 2014 October 
2014 

Inspector’s 
exploratory 
meeting 
held 
December 
2015.  
Changes 
needed – 
consultation 
on 
amended 
Plan in 
March 
2015.

Autumn 
2015

Spring 2016 January 
2014

November 
2014

Autumn 
2015

Spring 
2016

Autumn 
2016

East 
Hampshire 

July 2014 May 2014 November 
2014

February 
2015

April 2015 Spring 
2015

P
age 8



5

Local Plan Process Community Infrastructure Levy ProcessAuthority

Consultation 
stages

Pre-
submission 
consultation

Submission Examination Adoption Preliminary 
Draft 
Charging 
Schedule

Draft 
Charging 
Schedule

Submission Examination Adoption

Eastleigh Autumn 
2013

February 
2014

July 2014 November 
2014

Inspector’s 
report Feb 
2015 – plan 
not 
approved.

New Local 
plan to 
2036 being 
prepared.  

Local 
Development 
Scheme not 
yet published

October 
2013

February 
2014

August 
2014

On hold 
pending 
new Local 
Plan

Fareham August 2011 May 2013

Gosport February 
2013

August 
2014

November 
2014

March 2015 June 2015 October 
2013

September 
2014

November 
2014

March 2015 April 2015

Hart Autumn 
2014

Autumn 
2015

Winter 
2015/16

Spring 2016 Summer 
2016

May 2013 October 
2014

Early 2015 Spring 
2015

Summer 
2015

Havant March 2011 August 
2013

New Forest 
District

October 
2009

April 2015

New Forest 
National 
Park

December 
2010

Decision 
not to adopt 
CIL

P
age 9



6

Authority Local Plan Process Community Infrastructure Levy Process

Consultation 
stages

Pre-
submission 
consultation

Submission Examination Adoption Preliminary 
Draft 
Charging 
Schedule

Draft 
Charging 
Schedule

Submission Examination Adoption

Rushmoor October 
2011

October 
2012

Decision 
not to adopt 
CIL

South 
Downs 

January 
2014-2016

November 
2015

June 2016 Summer 
2017

Autumn 2017 March 
2014

Spring 
2015

Summer 
2015

Summer 
2015

Autumn 
2015

Test Valley March 2013 January 
2014

July 2014 December 
2014

June 2015 December 
2013

July 2014 January 
2015

Spring 
2015

Spring 
2015

Winchester March 2013 April 2014

P
age 10


	Agenda
	3 Skills and Employment in Hampshire
	4 Implications of the Community Infrastructure Levy and Changes to Section 106 for Hampshire Authorities

